
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

MAY 12, 2022 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 

Roll Call. 

 Pledge of Allegiance  

Approval of Minutes: April 14, 2022 

Rezoning      

(1) P-0522-11 Braxton Cove Properties, LLC Is Requesting Rezoning For 3276 
Greendale Rd. from Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9 For An 11 
Lot Subdivision.  

 
 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 1 

 

 
           

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

APRIL 14, 2022 
 

6:00 P.M. 
 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date 
at 6:00 PM, following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, in coordination with a Proclamation from Governor Ivey and 
pursuant to orders from the Jefferson County Health Department Official requiring social 
distancing along with limits of attendees, this meeting was held with a portion of the 
Commission digitally attending the meeting via remote computer locations utilizing a 
Zoom.com application. Staff and general public/audience members also were invited to 
attend via Zoom.com following publication pursuant to Alabama law. Chairman Barnes 
called the meeting to order and the City Planner called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mike Vercher, Chairman 
      Lyle Larson 
      Rick Honeycutt 
      Ryan Farrell 
      David Maluff 

Erica Barnes 
      Jonathan Romeo 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Hasting Sykes 

Rusty Weaver 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Conrad Garrison, City Planner 
            

          
   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Mr. Vercher stated that the minutes of the meeting March 10, 2022 are presented for 
approval. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve minutes was made by Mr. Larson and second was by 

Mr. Honeycutt.  Voice vote as follows: 
 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 2 

 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Ms. Barnes – abstained   Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Maloof– yes   
Mr. Vercher– yes  
Motion carried. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
(1) P-0422-10 Ashley Clarke Is Requesting Final Plat Approval For Resurvey 

Of Lot 5, Block 3 Blue Lake Estates, First Sector. The Purpose 
for This Request Is To Resurvey Lot Lines. The Property Is Owned 
By Ashley Clarke and Is Zoned Vestavia Hills A.   

      
Mr. Garrison explained the request will resurvey partial lots into one lot, allowing a 
building permit. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
Multiple neighbors spoke, seeking clarity for the request. 
 
Mr. Garrison stated this was a ministerial action. 
 
Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve final plat approval for Resurvey Of Lot 5, Block 3 Blue 

Lake Estates, First Sector was made by Ms. Barnes and second was by Mr. 
Romeo.  Voice vote as follows: 

 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Ms. Barnes – yes    Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Maloof– yes   
Mr. Vercher– yes  
Motion carried. 
 
Rezoning/Conditional Use      

(2) P-0422-09 Adam J. & Katherine A. McLaurin Are Requesting Rezoning For 
4538 Pine Tree Cir. from Vestavia Hills R-1 to Vestavia Hills B-
3 With Conditional Use Approval For Animal Boarding.  

 
Mr. Garrison explained the request will allow for the Pawms Pet Resort to expand with a 
new building on the neighboring lot. He also stated the staff recommendations.  
 
Jeff Hardwick and Wade Lowery were present to answer any questions the Commission 
had.  
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.   



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 3 

 
John Boone spoke and stated he was concerned about the marketability for neighboring 
lots if this is approved. 
 
Brandon Middleton spoke and stated we was concerned about run-off. 
 
Mr. Lowery explained the engineering of the site and stated the project would further 
extend the sewer line.  
 
Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
With the Commission finding that the application met all nine criteria as defined in 
Section 13.3.4 of the Vestavia Hills Zoning Ordinance 
 
MOTION  Ms. Barnes made a motion to recommend Rezoning for 4538 Pine Tree 
Dr. from R-1 to B-3 with a Conditional Use Approval for a animal boarding with the 
following conditions: 

1. Zoning contingent on lots being resurveyed.  
2. Building to be constructed with STC sound rating for exterior 

walls 
 

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Ms. Barnes – yes    Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Maloof– yes   
Mr. Vercher– yes  
Motion carried. 
 
New Business 
 
(3)  Amendments To The Vestavia Hills Zoning Code 
 
Mr. Garrison explained staff has been working on the changes for the past twelve months 
and the new Ordinance is ready for Commission and Council action. 
 
A discussion was had on Daycares being a permitted use in PR-1. Ultimately, the 
Commission decided to keep it under Conditional Uses. 
 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
Mr. Farrell recommended raising the maximum building height in B-3 zoning to five 
stories and allowing outdoor entertainment as a Conditional Use in a B-1.2 zoning. The 
Commission agreed.   
 



Planning and Zoning Minutes 
Page 4 

 
Mr. Vercher opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address the 
Commission concerning this request, Mr. Vercher closed the public hearing and opened 
the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION  Ms. Barnes made a motion to recommend the amendments to the Zoning 
Code. Second was by Mr. Larson. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 
 
Mr. Honeycutt – yes   Mr. Farrell – yes           
Ms. Barnes – yes    Mr. Larson – yes 
Mr. Romeo – yes    Mr. Maloof– yes   
Mr. Vercher– yes  
Motion carried. 
 
Conrad Garrison, City Planner 



 1 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     MAY 12, 2022 
 

 CASE:  P-0522-11 
 

 REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning From Vestavia Hills R-2 to Vestavia Hills R-9 
 

    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3276 Greendale Rd. 
 

 APPLICANT/OWNER: Braxton Cove Properties, LLC 
 

 GENERAL DISCUSSION: The request is for rezoning for property on Greendale 
Rd., adjacent to the Overton Manor townhomes and Trinity Presbyterian Church. The 
request is for an 11 lot subdivision. The lots will be accessed off a new private street 
with a sidewalk and a hammerhead terminus. Applicants are proposing to extend the 
sewer line from Overton Manor to serve the development. 

 
Proposed setbacks include 7’ in the front, 5’ on the sides, and 20’ for the rear. Site 
plan and proposed landscaping are attached. 

 
 CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN: The proposal is consistent with the 

plan for medium density residential. Additionally, the project could be considered 
transitional due to the large townhome development adjacent to the site. 

 
 STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 

subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  Staff recommends the following 
conditions: A. Approval based on site plan presented. B. Rezoning not 
completed until the final map has been recorded CC&R’s for the subdivision 
are recorded,  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 



 2 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
 
 





















































4 
- L

O
R

O
PE

TA
LU

M
 - 

TR
EE

 F
O

R
M

 (1
5 

G
AL

.)

Br
ax

to
n-

JS
H

A-
Ba

se
La

nd
sc

ap
eB

uf
fe

r(
04

-0
5-

20
22

)(
JT

4.
40

0B
ra

xt
on

Si
te

Pl
an

G
ra

di
ng

-C
C

).d
w

g

Br
ax

to
n

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 B

uf
fe

r P
la

n

Jo
hn

 S
. H

ar
ri

so
n,

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

Sc
al

e:
 1

"=
20

'  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
Ap

ri
l 6

, 2
02

1

NORTH

Sh
ee

t 1
 o

f 1

20
5-

28
1-

83
89

   
   

   
   

   
js

ha
@

be
lls

ou
th

.n
et

D
R

IV
EW

AY

1 
- W

IL
LO

W
 O

AK
 (3

" C
AL

.)
18

 - 
M

AR
Y 

N
EL

L 
H

O
LL

Y 
(8

'-9
' H

T.
)

3 
- D

.D
. B

LA
N

C
H

AR
D

 M
AG

N
O

LI
A 

(8
'-9

' H
T.

)

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 V

EG
ET

AT
IO

N
TO

 R
EM

AI
N

LA
W

N

5 
- L

O
R

O
PE

TA
LU

M
 - 

TR
EE

 F
O

R
M

 (1
5 

G
AL

.)
1 

- W
IL

LO
W

 O
AK

 (3
" C

AL
.)

3 
- D

.D
. B

LA
N

C
H

AR
D

 M
AG

N
O

LI
A 

(8
'-9

' H
T.

)

W
O

O
D

 F
EN

C
E 

- 6
' H

T.






